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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited Financial Statements for the six months

ended 31 December 2009.

RESULT:

DIVIDEND:

AUDITORS:

APPROPRIATIONS:

ACTIVITIES:

DIRECTORS INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS:

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ol

The loss for the period after tax was $(377,063)

The Directors recommend that no dividend be paid.

In terms of the Companies Act 1993, Ernst & Young are to continue in office
as the Branch’s auditors.

Surplus after tax for the nine months (377,063)

Less: Net Repatriations,

Unrealised Gain / (Loss) on Investments Nil

Accumulated surplus brought forward Nil
(377,063)

The principal activities during the year were those of insurance underwriting
and investment.

Directors have no interests to declare in the transactions of the six months
ended 31 December 2009.

Director

Director

{
jI¥h NOVEMRER. 2010
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independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of FM Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the New Zealand branchof FM Insurance Company Limited on pages: 1"
to 18, which comprise the statement of financial position of the.New Zealand branch of FM Insurénce Company '
Limited as at 31 Detember 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income; and statement of changes in head
office account for the six month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. .

This report is made solely to the company's shareholders, as a body,.in accordance with Section 19(3) of the
Financial Reporting Act 1993. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the'company's... -
shareholders those matters we are required to:state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not:accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the:New Zealand
branch of the company and:the company's shareholders as a-body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Dlrectors Responsibiiity for the Financial Statements . :

The directors are responsible for the prepatation of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted ’
accounting practice in'New Zealand, and that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation‘of fmanuai statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibillty :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit :
In accordance with' International: Standards on Auditing (New. Zealand). ‘These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical reqmrements and pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free.from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in.the
financlal statements. The procedures selected, depend on our judgement; including the assessment of the risks of

-material misstatement of the finaricial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk

assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the New Zealand branch of the company’s '

‘preparation of the financlal statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion
on the:effectiveness of the New Zealand branch of the company'sinternal control. :An audit also in¢ludes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies:used and-the reasonableness of accountlng estimates, aswell
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We beheVe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for cur'akudit' opinion

Other than'in our: capaclty as auditor we have no relationship with, or interest in the New Zealand branch of the
company. ,

Partners and employees of our firm may deal with'the Company on normat terms within the ordlnary course of

; tradlng activitlesof the business of the. Company,

Opinion

ln our opinion the fmanc:al statements on pages 1to18;

> comply with oenerally accepted. accounting practice in New Zeaiand
» . comply with lnternational Financial Reportmg Standards and :

> giveatrue and fair view of the financial position of the: New Zealand branch. of the company as:at 31
December 2009 and the fmancuai performance for the six months then ended.

: l.iability:iimited by a.scheme aoproyed
‘i 'under Professional Standards Legislation. -
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Report on Other Legal andi Regulatory Requirements
We have obtainéd all the'information and explanations we have required,

In‘our opinion proper accounting records have been kept by the New Zealand branch of the company as far as
appears from our examination of those records.

a,wv\%

Ernst & Youhg
11 November 2010
Melbourne
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FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Notes 2009
$

Gross written premiums 11,399,750
Movements in unearned premiums (6,590,134)
Gross earned premium 4,809,616
Reinsurance expense (3,367,487)
Net premium revenue 1,442,129
Claims expense 3 (1,419,971)
Reinsurance recoveries 180,583
Net claims expense (1,239,388)
Acquisition costs Nil
Underwriting result 202,741
Operating expenses 4 (774,534)
Investment income 5 33,132
Net surplus / (loss) before tax (538,661)
Taxation expense 6 161,598
Profit / (loss) and Total
comprehensive income for the nine
months (377,063)
Total comprehensive income
attributable to parent (377,063)

The attached notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

i



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

2009
’ $
Deemed Equity as at 1 July NIL
Profit/(Loss) for the year (377,063)
Deemed Equity as at 31 December (377,063)

The attached notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements,
together with the Auditors’ Report on page 3.

I



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

Notes 2009

Current Assets

Bank Account 449,828
Insurance Receivables 7 2,051,547
Unearned Premium R/I 4 612,338
Outstanding Claims R/I 103,057
Tax Assets 161,598
Total Current Assets 7,378,368
Non Current Assets
Investments 8 523,052
Total Non-Current Assets 523,052
TOTAL ASSETS 7,901,420
Current Liabilities
Insurance Payables 9 (785,215)
Outstanding Claims 12 (903,134)
Unearned Premium (6,590,134)
Tax Liabilities Nil
Total Current Liabilities (8,278,483)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (8,278,483)
NET ASSETS (377,063)
DEEMED EQUITY : HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT (377,063)

The attached notes on pages 8 to 18 form part of and should to be read in conjunction with these financial statements

z




FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD
- NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared for the New Zealand branch of FM Insurance Company Ltd,
which is incorporated in the United Kingdom.

Corporate Information

FM Insurance Company Ltd incorporated in the United Kingdom, is the Branch's immediate parent company.
Factory Mutual Insurance Company incorporated in United States of America, is the Branch's ultimate holding
company.

Financial Reporting Framework
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial
Reporting Act 1993.

Statement of Compliance

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. It complies with the New Zealand
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting
Standards as appropriate for profit oriented entities that qualify for and apply differential reporting
concessions. The branch is a profit oriented entity.

Differential Reporting

The Branch qualifies for differential reporting exemptions as described in the Framework for Differential
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants New Zealand because the Branch is not publicly
accountable and there is no separation between the shareholders and the governing body. The Branch has
elected to apply all available exemptions except those available under IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 18 which
allows revenue and expenses to be recognised inclusive of goods and services tax.

Registered Office

C/- KPMG Centre

18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue
Auckland 1010

Insurance Contract ,

All of the insurance products offered or utilised by the Branch meet the definition of insurance contracts under
the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards, and are accounted for and
reported in accordance with these standards.

These products do not contain embedded derivatives or deposits that are required to be unbundied.

Basis of Preparation ‘

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in
New Zealand and the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial Reporting Act 1993 on a
historical cost basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars.



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

The following particular accounting policies have been applied:

a) Premium Revenue

Premium revenue for insurance comprises amounts charged to policyholders. The earned portion of premium
received and receivable, including unclosed business, is recognised as revenue. The pattern of recognition of
income over the policy or indemnity periods is based on time, which closely approximates the pattern of risks
underwritten. Unearned premium is determined by apportioning the premiums wrltten over the period of risk
from the date of attachment of risk.

b) Unearned Premium

Provisions in respect of the proportion of premiums relating to risk in future periods of account are calculated
on the straight-line basis over the period of risk.

¢) Deferred Acquisition Expenses

Acquisition expenses, principally comprising commissions and fees incurred on insurance contracts, are
deferred and expensed over the period in which the related premiums are earned. Deferred acquisition costs
are measured at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

d) Outstanding Claims

The Outstanding Claims provision comprises the estimated costs of claims incurred including indirect claims
settlement costs, whether reported or not, and claims not settled at balance date. Reported claims have been
assessed in the light of the information available at balance date and after taking account of present value of
the expected future payments with an additional risk margin to allow for inherent uncertainty in future
settlements. The provision for claims incurred but not reported has been assessed having regard for the
Branch's claim performance. The expected future payments include claims handling costs which are to be
incurred in settling the insured claims.

e) Taxation

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the
taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or
asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither
taxable income nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s)
when the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Branch expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

o



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it
relates to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly

in equity.
f) Investments

Both investments and deposits have been designated at fair value through profit and loss as they are held to
match the average duration of a corresponding insurance liability as assets backing general insurance
liabilities. Fair value of government stock is established by reference to quoted bid prices. Interest income is
- recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest rate method.

g) Investment Income

Interest is accounted for on an accrual basis.

h) Foreign Currency Translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Both the functional currency and presentation currency of FM Insurance Company Ltd — New Zealand Branch
is New Zealand dollars ($).

(ii) Transactions & balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange
rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

i) Claims

Reported claims have been assessed in the light of the information available at balance date and after taking
account of expected trends in future settlements.

j) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for
impairment.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating unit level. Individual debts
that are known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognised when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the
debtor, default payments or debts more than 90 days overdue are considered objective evidence of
impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

k) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are recognised when the Branch becomes obliged to make future payments
resulting from the purchase of goods and services. Payables are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs. Subsequently payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

[} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

n) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Branch reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Branch estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

o) s.211 Disclosures

No disclosure has been made pursuant to Section 211(1) (a) and (e) to (j) of the Companies Act 1993
following a decision by the shareholders in accordance with Section 211 (3) of the Act.

p) Significant Accounting Judgements. Estimates & Assumptions

The preparafion of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates
its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses.
Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other various factors it
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the bhasis of the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with related parties for the
relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances on related party trade receivables and
payables at year-end, refer to notes 7 and 9 respectively):

R R/ Other
Premium Receivable Transactions
to Related from with related
Parties Related parties
Parties
$ $ $
FM Insurance Company
(Australia) Ltd 2009 - - 1,351,385
- expenses paid for on behalf
of the NZ branch
Factory Mutual Insurance
Company Ltd 2009 4,628,298 -
- Treaty Reinsurer of the NZ
branch

Unless otherwise stated, related parties are members of the Factory Mutual Insurance Company Ltd group.
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Reinsurance transactions to/ from related parties are made in arm's length transactions both at normal market
prices and on normal commercial terms.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

3. CLAIMS INCURRED

Current year claims relate to risks borne in the current financial year. Prior year claims relate to a
reassessment of the risks borne in all previous financial periods.

2009
$
Current Year
arrent ¥ 1419971
Prior Years -
1,419,971



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

4, OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Operating and administration expenses comprise:

2009
$
Allocation of Expenses from the Head
Office and Australian Branches 1,351,385
Revaluation of Government Bond 20,040
Commission on Reinsurance (596,891)
774,534
Auditor Remuneration:
2009
$
Audit Fee 20,000
Other Services -
Tax Compliance il
20,000
5. INVESTMENT INCOME
2009
$
Investment Income comprises:
Interest on Government Stock 33,132
Other Interest -
33,132



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

6. CURRENT YEAR’S TAXATION

Taxation Expense:

Profit / ( Loss) before Taxation

Current tax expense @ 30%

Adjustments recognised in the current period in

relation to the current tax of prior periods

Total Tax Expense

Taxation Expense comprises:

Current tax expense

Adjustments to current tax relating to prior years

Deferred tax expense

Current Tax Assets and Liabilities:

Tax Receivable
Tax Payable
Current Tax Asset / (Liability)

Deferred Tax balances

Temporary Differences:

Provision for Doubtful Debts
Deferred Acquisition Costs

UOMI & Fair Value gain on bonds

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

investment Income Receivable
Premium Debtors
Claims R/l Receivable

Related Party Receivable

Related party receivable:

All intercompany balances are with FM Insurance Company Ltd and are due and payable on demand. No

interest rates apply to the outstanding amounts.

2009

(538,661)

(161,598)

(161,598)

(161,598)

(161,598)

161,598

161,598

161,598

2009
$

1,974,021
77,526

2,051,547




FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

8. INVESTMENTS
2009
$
Current
Short Term Deposit -
Non Current
Government Stock 523,040
Total Investments 523,040
9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2009
$
Reinsurance Creditors (785,215)
Related Party Payables 2 -
(785,215)

Related party payables: ;
All intercompany balances are with FM Insurance Company Ltd and are due and payable on demand. No
interest rates apply to the outstanding amounts.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Categories of Financial instruments

2009
$
Cash and cash equivalents 449,828
Loans and receivables 7 2,051,547
Payables 9 : (785,215)

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss have been designated as such upon initial
recognition. \

b) Foreign Exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rate ruling at the
end of the financial year. Non-monetary assets are converted at historical rates. Transactions in foreign
currencies are recorded at average rates. Exchange differences arising from transactions are taken to the
profit and loss account.



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

c) Credit Risk"

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the branch.

The Branch does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the amounts shown in
the balance sheet and notes. The maximum credit risk to the Branch is the carrying value of the assets. The
Branch does not have any concentration of credit exposure.

d) Liquidity Risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Branch'’s short, medium and long
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Branch manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

e) Interest Rate Risk

The Branch is exposed to interest rate risk in that future interest rates movements will affect cash flows:

Weighted Within Between  Between  Between  Between
Average Total 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3Years 3-4Years 4-5+ Years
% $ $ $ $ $ $
2009
Bank 0% 449,828 449,828 - - - -
Government 6.5% 523,052 - - - 523,052 -
Securities

f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair value.

1. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2009 there were no capital commitments.

12. CLAIMS PROVISIONS

Estimate of Expected Future Payments for Claims Reported including:

2009 2009
$ $

Gross Net
Case Estimates ' 753,944 661,367
Discount (50,514) (44,311)
Loss Adjustment Expenses 36,039 31,614
Claims Administration Expenses 56,244 56,244
Risk Margin 107,421 95,163
903,134 800,077




FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

CLAIMS RESERVE 2009

$
At Beginning of the Period Nil
Claims Incurred (1,419,971)
Claims Settled 516,837
At End of Year (903,134)

13. UNEARNED PREMIUM RESERVE

2009
$
At Beginning of Year Nil
Premium Earned 4,809,616
Recognised in Income Statement (11,399,750)
At End of Year (6,590,134)

14, LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST

A liability adequacy test was carried out on the overall FM Insurance Company Ltd insurance portfolio in the
current year in accordance with NZ IFRS 4.

The liability adequacy test identified surpluses, therefore there was no write down of any asset balances.

15. INSURER FINANCIAL STRENGTH RATING

FM Insurance Company Ltd has a financial strength rating of A+ Superior issued by A M Best.

16. EQUITY RETAINED FOR THE PURPOSES OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS

The branch retains a level of equity and retained reserves which enable it to maintain an adequate solvency
margin for ongoing ability to pay clients. These financial statements relate to a branch of an overseas
company. Its assets are available to support the liabilities of the company outside of New Zealand.

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, there were no contingent liabilities existing at balance date not otherwise provided
for in these financial statements.

18. = SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No event has arisen since 31 December 2009 which has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the
operations of the branch in future financial years, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
company in future financial years.



FM INSURANCE COMPANY LTD - NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

19. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

As at 31 December 2009, the Branch had no obligations payable after balance date on non-canceliable
operating leases.

20. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2009, the Branch had no obligations payable after balance date on finance leases.
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FM Insurance Company Lzlmted
' Reg:slered number 755780

Dzrectars repart
Jor the year ended 31 Decembw 2009

The directors present their annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.
Results and ﬂivideuds '

The results of the group’s operations for the f’ nauclal year are set out on pages 8 and: 9 and the
financial position of the group at the end of the financial year i§ st out on pages 10 and 11,

The dzrectors do not racammend the payment ofa- dmdend (2008: £Nil).
The profit for the year retained in the group is £65,966, OOD (@908 loss: £34,935,000). -
Principal activities and review of the business o

The Group’s ptimlpal activities -during the year mntmned to be the underwmmg of  property
insurance risks and the provision of related engineering and loss prevention services to large and
medium sized clients of the UK and various international branches. The Group is wholly owned by,
and places reinsurarice with, Factory Mutual Insurance C@mpany located in Fohnsmu, Rhode island
USA (the *Parent™).

Gross premiums written increased to £'169 584,000 from £629, 592 009 {22.2%) during the year, The
increase was mainly due to exchange movements during ‘the year, in part:aular the strengtgemng of
the Euro and the Dollar against Sterling,

The Group made a post tax profit of £65,966,000 ﬂurmg tbc; goear Tbere weré a lower numbeér of
larger value claims which contributed to a net "loss ratio of 52.9% (2008; 98.3%). The expense ratio
(net of other income) was 32.7% (2008: 3.2%), including a foréign exchange loss of £22,026,000

gzcns gain of £91,143,000): Realised and unrealised gains on investments amounted to £66 904, DOO
2008: loss of £59, 714 ,000) as a result of the general movements in the stock markets.

E rofit, for the year and other movements described in the Statement of Total Reco tised Gains
and Losses resulted. in an overall increase in shareholder’s funds of £77,541,000, resu ting in total
shareholder’s fands of £379,835 ;000 as at 31 December 2009.

A new Switzerland insurance branich of FM Insurance Company. lertcd received its lmeuce on 17
December 2009: A new Labuan branch of FM Insurance Company Limited was registered on 9
September 2009 and received its reinsurance licence effective | January 2010:

LA submdaary of FM hwuranca Compan Limited; FM do Brasil Servicos de Prevcmcaa de Perdas
%wﬁeﬂ E\gas sold at book value éurmg e yearto FM Global Services LLC wn:h an effective date of
1 May :

: Xh& ml.tgrre:nt ratings'of tiw Group are AA (Very Strung) from:Fitch Ratmgs and A+ (supmor) from
est. -

Principal visks and uncertmnﬁes

" “The Group monitors various risks thrbughmxf its mtemanénél épcratmns including insurance risk,
operational risk, credit risk arid market risk on an fmgmng basis. The principal risks facing the Group
are discussed and reviewed reguiarly at managemem meatmgs &nd msetmgs of the Board of
Dil‘%ft)l‘s‘ B : L ,

E Imm*ance rzsk is mmted through' stmt underwmmg ﬁzsmphnes, ami resmsarance arraugaments wﬁieh
Jimit ﬂw maxxmum passzbia k;ss Ly the Group; . :




FM Insurance Company Lm—med
Registered number: 753780

Directors’ report
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009 (croﬂunued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

The Group invests in.US and Australian government bends, Us eqmtms and with hlghly-ratzd banks,
Reinsurance is placed with highly rated counterparties.

Operational risk is pionitored thmugh the risk register review process. As risks are 1dent1ﬁed they are
included on the risk register, assigned an owner and a score taking into account likelibood; impact,
controls and mitigation. They are reviewed and discussed regularly at Risk Management Cemmlttee

meetings and the Risk Management Committee findings are discussed with the Board. ’

The Group pm-actxvesly cngages in' matching the currency demmmatmns of assets to the currencies of
known liabilities. ; ,

The:Group,does not consider hquzdaty and eash-ﬂmv to be a major risk given the relatxvely shnrt-berm
nature of ‘the investinents.and the availability of cash from the parent epmpany

Future developments

The Group anticipate ‘thal mar’ket conditions: will be such during E(HD that pmmmms wﬂI decrease
appmmmate}y 4% from 2009 premium levels. The Group expects a relatively consistent geographical
mix 10.2009, and to mamtam profitability durmg 2010,

Going coiicern

The directors believe the Group is able to manage their business risks successfully despite the current
uncertain economic outlook. Furthermore, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group

“has adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future. As such they mmmue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual ﬁmmmal statements:

Directors and empia’yees
The dlreuors who held office during the year and to the date of thls rcpart were as tbi]ows

Kenneth W, ‘Davey : Managing Director
Carol Barton o :
lan R. Berg
Dennis J. Bessant -
- Amtonius R. H, Bosman ~
Jeffrey Burchill - L
Omar F. Hameed' NE ’
Michael Lebovitz . (Appointjod 19 chember 2Q09)
Shivan 8, Subramaciam ,
iwfan%’l"{anqwllo | “{Ap d 12-F b 2910)
evin S, Ingram B pointe ebroary
Ciaran O'Donnell . (Resrgnad 31 December 2009)

No dxmmms had :my mtmm m the shares of the cumpany durmg the year
Details-of empioyees are et aut in nete 9 o the ﬁnancial statemants
Po!mcai and charxtablg eoutnbutmns

: %r up made no pohmal eontrtbunons darmg the year. Chmtabie dunatmns smounted to:£34, 153
(2008: £41 &7&) ; .




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780

Directors’ report ' v )
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

Emgployee note

It is the group's policy ‘to' treat -all employees in the saine way, regardless of their sex, sexual
orientation, reggioihm‘. belief, marital status, age, race, ethni¢ ‘origin or disability, and is stated in-our
Equal Opportunities Policy. The policy provides for consideration of reasonable adjustments the
group might take:in the event that.an employee becomes disabled, which would include Wv‘mjmﬂ%
that may be needed. Our performance management process includes discussion and agreement wit
respect to training for career development purposes for all employees, irrespective ‘of sex, sexual
orientation, religion or belicf, marital status; age, race, ethnic origin or disability. :

Insurance of directors
Insurance is maintained for the directors in respect of their duties as directors of the group.
Disclosure of information to the auditors

So far. as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware; there is.no
“relevant audit information, being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its
report, of which the auditor-is unaware. -Having madé enquiries of fellow direetors and the group’s
auditor, each director hag teken allthe steps that he/she. is obliged to take as a director in order.to
make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware

of that'information,
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The: directors “are tesmﬂsible for ‘preparing the ‘Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations. : , :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial staternents for.cach financial {&m Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally  Accepted  Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and: applicable
law). The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the group and the company and the profit of loss of the group for that period.  In preparing those

financial statements, the directors are required to:

» . select suitable :'a?ccouhting policies and then applé? them consist‘eritly;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether apdpliaable United Kingdom ‘Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; ‘

» " prepare: the finangial statements on the ‘going congern” basis unless it -is-inappropriate to
presume that the group will continue in business. : ,

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and the company and to enable them to ensure
-that the financial statemients comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for -
safoguarding the assets of the ‘fm‘zgj and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. - - g EEE

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. o : .




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 753 780 '

Directors’ report v :
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)

Re-appointmentof auditors

Pursuant to g shareholdets’ resolution the C(:mpany is not obliged to teappeint fts auditor annuai[y
and Erast & Young LLEP will therefore c:ontmuﬁ in office. ;

On behalf of the board.

LA

Kevin 5. Ingram
" Finance Director




FM Insurance Company meed
Registered mmzber‘ 755780

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHQLDERS OF M INSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED

We have ausdtteci the financial statements of EM Insurance. Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2009 .which comprise the Congoliddated, Profit and Loss. Accoumt, Consolidated Statement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Company Balance Sheet and the
related notes 1'to 27. The linancial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law ‘and United Kingdom Accaunnng Standards (United Kingdom: Generally Accepted
Ac:countmg Pracﬁce} ;

This report is made solely 10 the company’s members asa bedy, in-accordance thh Chapter 3:0f Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, -Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the
company’s imembers, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. ‘To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do ot accept or assume responsibility to
anyone othier than the Company and the company’s members as a:body, - for our-audit work, for thls
réport, or for the opinions we have formed :

" Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities set outon page 4, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and. fair view. - Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with
apphcab!e Taiw and Int&msmﬂnai Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). "Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Pramces Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Smudards for Auditors.

Scope of the auditof the ﬁnaucial statements

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in;the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, ‘whether :caused by fraud or error, This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and-have
been consistently applied- and adequately: disclosed; the. reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Equalisation provision |

Qur evaluation of the pmsﬁmatmn of information in the ﬁnanmal statements has had reg,ard 1o the
statutory wqmrement for insurance companies fo maintain an equalisation provision. The nature of
the equabsaﬂon provision,. tha amount set aside at 31 December 2009, and the effect of the movement

- in the provision during the year én sharcholders® funds; the technical account = general busmess and
the profit or loss on urdmaw activities before tax, i3 dtsclcwd in note 21




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780 ‘

INDEPENDENT AﬁDIT ORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FM INSURANCE ,
COWANY LIMITED (continued) ’

Opiﬁion on financial statements

Int our apmmn the financial statements:
* . give a'true and fair view of the state:.of the group’s and the parent camvany 3 affairs as at 31
December 2009 and of the group’s prafit for the year then ended; .
= 'have been properly prepared in accordance with Umte:d Kingdom Generally Acoepted
Accounting Practice; and
* . have been prepared in accordance with the: requirements of the Compamﬁss Act 2006,

Opinion on other matfer prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which. the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required m report by e:meption

We have neﬂung 1o report in res:pect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us 4o report to you if, in.our opinion:
*" adéquate accourting records have not been kept by thie parem company, or returtis adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
= the parent company fi nangial statements are not in agreement with the ‘accounting records and
returns; or
certain disclosures.of directors’ remunerauan spectﬁed by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we rcqulre for cur audxt

Jolin Headley {Senior smm oy anditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

%O March 2010




FM Insurance Company Limited

Registered number: 755780

Consolidated profit and loss account: techmical account — general business

for the year ended 31 December 2009

QOross premiums written

Outward reinsurance premiums

Change in the gross pmw-isi.oh for
unsarned premiutnis

Change in the provision for uni¢arned
premiuns, reinsurers’ sharg -

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance

Other technical income

Claims paid
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share

Change in the provision for claims
Gross amount |

Reinsurers” share

Claims incurred, net of yéinsurance:

Net operating eXperises v
Change in equalisation 'pmvisign -

*- Balance on the technical account

. general business

Notes

3

H

21

2
27

21

2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 €000
769,584 . 629,592
(588,436) (496.917)
S 81148 ' 132,675
5,114 1.270)
(12,205) 6,706
’ (1091) (564)
174,087 B3I
a4 5,939
(336.873) (451,072
228,091 L 307.852
(108,782) (143,220)
65,588 67843
(48,963) " (s4481)
16,628 13362
(92,157 (129,858)
©5391) (16,120)
L s 760
19508 5,832




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780

Consolidated profit and losy account: nan»tecknical account
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

Note 2009 2008

, £000 £000

Balance-on the technical account . general business ' v 19,5(]3 5,832
Other finance income .- : 2y 294 1,087
Investmienif income ; . g C13ET 17,486
Tnterest expense : 4 @) 23)
Unmalxsed gams/(lnnsc@) on mvastmznts ) : 4 62213 (60,067}
Profit/(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 8 95,584 (35.985)
Tax on profitloss on ordinary activities e (29,619) 1,050
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year transferred to reserves , 65,966 (34.933)

Ww

The movements in the yearare all.in respect of continuing epef'&tiuﬁs‘

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

Note 2009 2008

: _ _ £000- £000

Profit(Loss) for the financial yoar _ ; v S s 68,966 (34,935)

Actuarial gain/(loss) (FRS17) L S 24 1,320 (07,774

Deferred tax on actuarial (gain)/loss ' : g ey 4977
Net currency differences onretranslation of net investments in foreign - L ;

" brajches 10,625 ’ 2,979

Total recognised profiti(loss) relating to 'ihe»:ygar 17541 {4733




FM Insurance Company Limited

Registered mumber: 755780

v C‘ansalidafed balance sheet
at 31 December 2009

Assets

Investments
Other financial investments

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums

Claims outstanding.

Debtors

Detitors arising out of direct insurance
“operations

nei;tpm arising out of réhisurance operations

Other debtors: ‘ ,

. Ameunts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after ong year

Other assets ‘
Tangible fixed assets
 Cash at bank and in hand ’

Prepayments uml acerued income
Accrued interest and rent .-

befzrr_;s‘d acquisition r;t»Sts ,
Other prepayments and accrued income

Tos!al assets exciuding ner pgnsiim asset
Net pension asset

Totalassets oo

2009
£000 £000.
Note
42344376
344,326
20 181,753
21 235145 »
' 406,898
I3 83,883
18,195
£7)
10,181
1424
113,683
16 6,459
17.. - 207,850
""" 314,309
1354
2l 2666
337
1387
| 1,086,573
24 s
| ;;‘F‘ ,13091;065 :

2008
£000 £000
270,157
270,157
188,580
265,053
453,635
94291
23,010
6,440
15,713
' 139,454
7,371
181,166.
188,543
1,133
5,497
563 v
: 7.193
1,058,982
1,058,982

B e e




EM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780

Consolidated bulance sheet

at 31 December 2009
. 2009 ‘ . 20608
T e ~TTE000
Note
Liabilities
Cupital and reserves ‘ ’
Called up share capital ’ | 18 .. 325,000 325;000
Share premium account 19 o8 ) 978
Profit ang loss accoutt v -~ 19 53887 -:(23,684)
Shareholder’s funds attributable to-equity interests - 3798385 : 302,294
Technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums v 21 246,590 , 244,114
Claims outstanding '~ - L 21 340034 ' 391,214,
.Bquslisation provision... " ‘ 21 T4 e
2 ' TR 593,648 637,577
' Cmditars
Créditors arising out of d;rm:t insurance operations’ 60,044 Ll 84,601
Oifwgdwwm including taxation and social s 33,110 S 35,987
93,154 £9,888
 Accruals.and deferred income 23 ~ 24,369 23376
. Total linbilities excluding wet pension liabdm: 3,091,006 1,053,035
Net pension liability e M L - 5047
Total liabitities - o T 1,058,982

These financial statemcﬂts were. approved. by the board of dirwtm‘s on29 March 2&}16 and were
signed on its behalf by:

el

 Kevin S. In
".‘Finance Director’ -




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780

Comp'qny balance sheet
at 31 December 2009
2009 ‘2008

Note £600 000 £000 £000
Assets
Investments ‘
Other findncial investments ' 12 344336 . 269808
Investments. in subsididry undertakings 11 51 813

v , 344,371 ’ 270,621
Reinsurers’ share of technlcal provisions

Provision for unearned premiims. . 20 181,753 188,580
Claims outstanding - o 225,145 _ 2955,055
- ' ‘ 406,898 453,635
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 1377 §3.883 T 94,291
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 18,195 £ 23,010
COther debtors: ‘ 14 i
- Amounts falling due within one year ' 9,702 5,097
Amounts falling due after one year ~ , 1,298 115,581
' 113,078 137,979
Other assets 5 , , - ’
Tangible fixed assets v 16 6220 v 6,693
Cash at bank and inhand i7ooasan L 1sT
, | : I 211,693 ’ 185,474
Prepaymenis and accrued income ; » »
Accrued interest and rent ’ ‘ 1,347 : 1,133
Deferred acquisition costs S 2 5,666 5497
om,:mpaymm and accrued income » : 327 _ .52@ S
5 | : ” o »-»--m— Yok
Total assets exﬁkﬁdb‘ﬂéﬁ#@s}m,m i el 1083386 _'MI,QSA,W:‘ |
Netpensiomasset 24 oaam
Total assets e 1087819 1054867




FM Insurance Company Limited
Registered number: 755780

Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2009
,,,,,, L apey s
. £000 £000 £000 £000
Note

Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 325,000 325.000
Share prémium account 19 978 T 978
Profit and loss account ‘ 19 5094 (25.677)
Shareholder’s funds attributable to eqtﬁty 16,922 300,301

interests

. Technical pmvisiom :
Provision for unearned pmmmms : 2F 246,590 : 244,714
Claims outstanding ‘ 210 340,034 : 391,214
Equalisation provision ' R | 7,004 ; e 1:549
593,648 637:477

Creditors ;
Creditors arising out of direct insiirance

operatiofis : W,W » 54‘@1
Other creditors mcludmg taxation and social” e

secitrity 22 ¢ 33588 34651 ;

‘ : 93,502 T 89,252
Accruals and deferred income 23 23687 21,890
Total liabilities excluding net pension riabw;y : 1,087819 1,048,920
Net pension liabilly . - 24 e 5,947,
Total liabilities L ’ L 1,087,819 o 1,054,867

‘These imanmai statements ‘were appmved by the boaﬁd af dlrecm ‘on 29 March 2910 and-were
signed on its hehaifby

Finance Director




FM ‘Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have:been prepared in accordance with the aasounnng policies set out below
and comply with the special provisions relating to insurance companies in Schedule 3 of the Large-and
Medium-sized Companics and. Groups: (Accounts and: Reports) Regulation 2008, made . under
Companies - Act 2006.. " The recommendations  of the ‘Statement of Re;:ammended Practice on’
Accounting for Insurance Business issued by the Association of British Insurers in December 2005 as
amended ‘in December 2006 have been adopted. ' The financtaf statements are prépared in accordanice
with the applicable UK accounting standards. .

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared. These ﬁnﬁnmal statemeiits therefore present
information about the company and its subsndnanes as set out in note I 1

No profit and loss account is presented for the company as permitted by sectwra 408 of the Companies
Act 2006,

The Group has taken advamage of the exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to disclose
transactions with companies in the Factory Mutual Insurance Company (FMIC) group as it is a wholly
owned subsidiary of FMIC which publishes consolidated financial statements. The group has taken
advantage: of the exemgtmn undgr }“RS 1 Cash Flow Statamems (Revxsed} 1ot 10 prepare a cash flow
statement .

2 Accounting policies

The foﬂmng acconntmg ‘policies have been applied cons;stently in dea[mg with 1tm which are
considered material in relation to the gmup g financial statements. =+ ch s ‘

Prenuums

cover pravxded by contrwts mceptmg durmg the ﬁnanmal yaar, and are statsd befare commissions;
taxes and dum;& levied on premxmns i .

Premiums written are acemmted for in the year in whxch the ﬂsk incepts and include adjustrrmts to
premmms written: in - prior accounting perlods and estimates for “pipeline” premtums Outward
reifisurance pmmmms are accounted fm‘ in the same acceuntmg penod as the premiums for the related
inwards direct insurance business.

Unearned prentiums
The provision for uneamed premxums cempnses the amount represemmg that part of gmss premmms

written ‘which 'is- estimated to be earned in the following or subsequent f‘inanmal years, enmputed
sseparately f(ar each insurance cmatract usmg tlm daily pro rata mzthod .




FM Insurance Company Limited

 Notes to the consal‘_tj}mted financial statements
forthe year ended 31 December 2009 '

1 Basis oi‘ preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the a@countmg policies set oul below
and comply with the special provisions relating to insurance companigs in Schedule 3 .of the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and. Reports) Regulation 2008, made under
Companies {Act 2006, . The recommendations of  the Statement of Recommended Practice on
Am:mmtmg for Insurance Business issued by the Association of British'Insurers in'December 2003 as
amended in December 2006 have been adopted. The financial statements are prfepamd in accordance
with:the applicable UK accsunung standards

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared,  These financial staiements thevefore preﬁeﬁt
information about the company and 1ts subsudlanes as sef outin note 11,

No profit and lass accoum is presented for the compariy as penmtted by section 408 of the Compan ies
Act 2006, . ;

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to disclose
transactions with companies in the Factory Mutual Insurance Company (FMIC) group as it is a wholly
owned subsidiary of FMIC -which publishes consolidated financial statements. The group has-taken
advantage of the exemption under FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements (Revised) not to prepare a cash flow
‘statement. ,

2 Accounﬁng poﬁcies '

The f’o,l,lowmg awountmg pohmes have bw.’t apphed consastently in, dealing with items which are
considered material in reiatmn to'the group’s financial statements, . : '

Premiams

Written premiums; gross of commission, comprise the premiums receivable for the whole pen’od of
cover provided by contracts mwpung during the. financial year, and are: stated before commxssmns
taxes and dutwe levied on premmms :

Premiums written are accﬂunted for in the. year i which the risk incepts and include adgustmems to

) premmms written -in* prior: accounting perwds and ‘estimates for “pipeline” ”premmms Qutward
reinsurance premiums are accounted forin the same acmummg period as the premwms for the mlated
inwards dxrect insurance tmsmess " : e

Uneumed premiums‘
: The pmwswn for uwamed prmnmms camprnm the amount representmg that part uf’ gross premiums

written Which is* estimated to be earned in-the following or snbsequent financial years, wmpmed
sepamtely for each insurance comract using the daily pro rata‘method,




FM Insumnce Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated fi mmczal sratsments
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2 Accganﬁﬁgpnﬁcies {continued)
Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise the expenses, both-direct and indirect, of acquiring insurance policies
incepting during the financial year. Acquisition costs which relaie to a subsequent financial year are

 deferred and charged to the accounting periods in which the related premiums are earned. Deferred
acquisition costs represent the proportion” of - acquisition costs incurred which corresponds o the
proportion of gross premiums written which are unearned at the balance sheet date.

Claims

Claims incdrred includes-all claims payments made in respect of the financial period, claims handling
expenses-and the'movement in provision for outstanding claims and clalms handling EK{!@“%S

Clazm.s omsmn&ng |

Qatstandmg cfavms gomprise prowswns for the estimated: costs Qf settling ali claims mcurred up 1o but
not paid at the balance sheet- date: whether repuﬂcd or not, together. with related claims’ handling
ﬁxpenses

The provrsxon for claims Outstandmg is based on mfaﬂmtwn available st the balam:e sheet date.

Significant delays can be experienced in the notification-and settlement of certain claims. Accordingly,

the ultimate cost of such claims cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date.  Subsequent

information and-events may result in the ultimate liability being less than or greater than the amount

provided. Any differences between provisions and subsequent mﬂgments are dealt with in the techaical
“account ~ general business of later years,

Investmenti income and gains on realisation of investments~

Investment income is accounted for on an acoruals basis. Realised gams or losses represent the
difference between net sales proceeds and purchase pnce All:realised gams and losses are taken to the
nnn-tzwhnm&l account.

Unrealised gains and tasée& rrm investments: -

Unrealised gains and fosses represem the dlffereme between the valuatwn of investments at the balance
sheet date and their purchase price or, if they have been prevmusly revalued, their valuation at the last
balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and. losses recognised in earlier
accouiiting periods in respect of investment: dtsposals in' the carrent period. ~All unwahsed gains-and
loases are taken to the namtechmcai accaum in the pmﬁt and loss account, :

Eqaalwmiﬂn pmvlymn :

The equahsatmn pmv;smn is reqmmd fobe mamtamﬁd by IN&PRU 1.4, The provxstaﬂ is established in
addition to the provisions requtred 10 meet the esnmatﬁd eosts of se‘tﬂmg outstmdmg clalms




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consaiida&dﬁmncia! statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

2 Acceunting policies (cuntinded)

Investmenis

All investments are stated at their current value. - Listed investments are stated at mid market value.
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are held at cost. Investments are reviewed at each reporting date’
to assess whether there are any circumstances that might indicate that they are impaired. If such
circumistances exist, impairment wstmg is performed and any resultmg impairment losses are charged to
the income statemem and the carrying value adjusted to the recoverable amount.

Fixed assets

Depreciation is.provided by the tompany to write ‘off the cost less the estimated residual value of
tangible fixed assets by instalments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Office equipment . 20% of cost per annum

Office furniture 10% of cost per annum
Compiiter etiiipment 33.3% or 50%.0f cost per annum
Motor vehicles 25% of net bnok value per annum’
Leases

No leases entail taking substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset. Therefore all
leases are accounted for as ‘operating leases’ and the rental charges are charged to the profit and loss
account on.a str&xght line-basis over the life of the lease,

Foreign currenciﬂ

Monemry assete and liabilities denominated in farexgn currencies ‘are retranslated at exchange rates
ruling at ‘the ‘end of -the financial year. Nsn»monetary assets are converted at- historical rates.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at average rates. I:xchange d!fferenees arising from
tramaetlons are Laken to the profit and loss ancount

anferences on exchange artsmg from the retranslation Qf the cpemng net mvest:ment in ovﬂi‘sﬁab
branches are taken to reserves.

Pensions

- The Group operates 2 numbcr of defined benofit pensmn scheres. Pcnsxcm scheme assets are measured
at.fair value and habnhiw.s are measured on. an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and are
discounted at the current tate of return of a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency
‘o the liabilities, The increase in the present value of the liabilities of the Group’s defined benefit
-pension schemes expected to arise from employee service in the period is charged to the profit and loss
account.  The expected return on scheme’s assets and the increase during the year in the present value:
of the scheme’s Tiabilities.arising from the passage of time are included in the pmﬁt and-loss account.”
Actuarial gams and Ios&es are rmog,msed in the stawmam @f total r&cognmeé gwm and losses.

Any pension scheme surplus, tn the zxwm: it is cmmdemd reecavarable, or daﬁcit is remgmsed in full |
, and presented on ﬁw batance sheet. ; ) , :




FM Insurance Compziny Limited

Notes to thé consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2 Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Current tax expense is charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estitmated to be payable or
recoverable as a result of taxable operations for the current year. To the extent that losses of an
individual UK company are not offset in any one year, they can be carried back for one year or carried
forward indefinitely to be offset against profits arising from the same company.,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in-ascordance with f,he provisions of FRS 19. The
Company has chosen not to apply the option available of recognising such assets and liabilities on a
discounted basis to reflect the time value of money. Except as set out in. FRS 19, deferred tax is
recognised in respect of all timing differences that have oﬁgmawd but not reversed by the balance sheet
date. Déferred tax assets are recognised to the extent thai it is regarded as more likely than not that they
will-be reécovered,

The. Group’s UK subs:dmnes cach file separate tax returns. In acccrdance ‘with UK. tax legﬁiatmn,
where one domestic UK company is 275 per cent owned subsxdmry of another UK company or both are
75 per cent owned subsidiaries. of a common parent; the:.companies are considered to be within the'same

UK 'tax group. For companies within the same tax group, trading profits and losses arising in the same
accounting period miay be offset for the purposes of determining current and deferred taxes.

Unexpired Risk Provision

Provision for unexpired risks is made where the estxmated costs of future claims and related deferred
acquisition costs are expecwd to-exceed the unearned preniium provision. In determining the need for
an uniexpired risk provision the different classes of business have been regarded as business that is
managed tagmher Based on information available at the balance sheet date; before taking into account
investment income But including previous claims experlence the Lompany has assassed that no
provision is required,




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements |
for the year ended 31 December 2009

3 . Segmentalinformation ‘
- Analysis of premiums, profit before taxation and net assefts

2009 L 2008

Gross Profit/(Loss} Nei Gross . Profit/(Lossy. . Net
premium before assets premium before AsseLs
- wiitten taxation writien taxation ~
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
By geagraphical segmeny : : S fo o
United Kingdom. - ‘398,231 85615 314,824 340,064 (45,02)) 254633
Germany 80,133 C(4404) T (11433) M9 L 5ET3 (6,523)
France 80,166 2,769 18,542 66,683 5,065 15,662
 Belgium 7,283 4682 042 18,890 (618) 3,538
Sweden 53,635 (11,289)  (19874) 45,599 @31 ®034)
Australtia :109,185 15,435 71,310 67,763 6100 46642
Ttaly : 10,733 3,218 L9 12,792 (4,620) (1,194
Singapore ER 8,125 1 (133 2,169 (823) (782)
Hong Kong 3,336 804 (1,051) 311 (1,568). . (1,;845)
Netherlands ‘ 18,757 (L304) - (1,083) 3,529 258 197
Total v 769,584 95,584 - 379835 - 629,592 (35.985) 302294

Subsidiaries are included.in the United Kingdom segment, The regional offices are funded for their
operational and capital requirements through inter-office accounts.

2009 : : 2008

Gross Profit Net : Gaross Liss Net |
premium before assels premium befors 455618
written taxation writtén - - taxaiion '
‘ i £000 £000 . £000. £000 £000 £000
By class of business: o ' : » : S
 Direet 608,470 15573 300,316 495623 - (28,328) 237,970
Assumed S NeLIN 20001 79519 133,969 . (7.65T) 64324
Total S 769,584 95,534 379,805 6:39 592 (35.985) 302,294
Analysis of gross written premim~ ‘
ZW 2008
£000 . £000
Resulting i’mm contracts concluded by the company:. P : L
Tn the EU member state 6f fis head office CRTC T 39898E L 340,064
Irithe aﬁwr FU member stnws : R Rt S ; zsa,.vms' e 219,285‘
: : : o 769,584 : 629 592




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated ﬁnmiciai Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

3 Segmental information (continued)

Analysis of gross premiums written, gross premiums earned, gross claims imurred, ‘gross operating expenses;
reinsurance balance and the technical provisions

Gross Gross Gross Gross - Reinsurance Total Net assets
premigms = premiums claims - operating - . bafgnee
writfen earnied | inclrred; . expenses
£000 £000 £000 £006 £000 £000 £000
Goods in tranisit 2,002 2,525 (1,136) (394) 368 1,363 1,033
g}%’%‘“‘“' 464,311 SIL7I6 (130,164)  (87427) (88211) 5914 229,165
“ Gneral liability i S ase - 1286 - i
Conscquiential loss 142,067 154,965 (45474)  (26,750) (72,086) - 10655 10,118
Assumed ' I6LIN 105492 (93225), - (30,337) 16647 (1,423) 279,519
Tolal 769,584 0 714,698 (271,285)  (144908)  (341,996) 16,509 379,838
. 2008 ;
Gross. Gross Gross Gross: Reinsurance . Totat Net assels
- premigms premiums claims . Operating balance
veritfen - earned “iihcureed., T expenses. SO R
£000 " £000 £000° ... - £00D £000 £000 - UE000
Goods intransit 3,006 212 - {1,720) (188) . @514 (@2310) 1,443
,‘f&‘;’ﬁg‘;’?‘”‘ , 386,555 384,270 (150382  (A4,224) . . (DAST) (26907 185,603
General fiability — o @247 = 2,247 - —
Consequential fosy 10666’2 105,833 (1208100 16,647) - 21,091 (833 . 50925
Assumed L amgey s 130,007 (108,070) -~ (8396) - 6242 . 19883 64.324
Total S e9s; zsm:zz (83, 229) 39 455)[3 (207505 8D 302,29
4 . Investmient retutn and charges D
| | 000 £000
Net income from investments R 219 _ 11417
- Net interest received from bank accounts and. ﬁX&dﬂBlets ' EHERS I X ¥ A : 5416
Realised gain-on investments. - ) : L hGeE » s e ' .. 353
“investment income G R 138 17186
Net interest payable = = e L o aaE8)
Unrealmd pains/(losses) tm mv%tmmts : . 8. 1k » i (60,067T)
. g c Casgsr o (42908 -

e L e




FM Insurance Campany Limited

Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancml statemants
Jfor the year ended 31 December 2009

5 - Net operating eﬁpéﬂm

Acyuisition costs -
Chiange ingross deferred acqitisition eosts

Administrative expenscs

Giross operating exp,eﬁSes

Reinsurance commissions

Change in deferred réinsitance wmmissian

2009
- £000
24,796
(288)
24,508
120,400
144,908
(81364)
1,847
65,391

! e

2008
cono

32,757
£160)
32,597
6,858
39,455
(31223)

1888
10,120

e ]

A foreign exchange loss of £22,026,000 (2008: £91,143,000 gain) is included within administrative expenses.

6 Profit/(Loss) on brdinary activities before tax

Pmﬁv’(l.oxs) o ardinagr actwiffes befure tax iy stated aﬁer ﬂharglny the

Jollawing:
Loss/(gam) on:foreign e:xchange
Profit. on sale of fixed assets
Depreciation
Rentulgander opérating leawcs oty land afd buildings
‘Rentals undet other gpemmg 1@&8&3
Audztors reémuneration -

7 Audlitors® reimaneration

The remuncration of the auditors. js, ﬁnker unalysedax ﬁxllam.
Auditofthe ﬁnancxal statemenis — current year

" = prior year

Other fbes to giditors. :
Andits of subsldmms and branches: - current year
o pmr year
Other services pursuam: o 1egiqlamn Seurrent year
“#ptioryear
Other services

2009

22,026
19).
2,125
7,843
2,509
375

2009
£000

168

168

154
LB
37

207

375

2008

{91,143)
(31}
2,104
7,991
2,200

2008
£000

72
i

[

135
7
37

14

346

399




FM Insurance Cvmpany Limited

Notes to the cansakdaled financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009 e

8 Remnnemﬁau of directors
2009 2008
© £000 , £000
Dirgetors’ emoluments | . ‘ , : 1,138 5128
Agounts payable nnder-iong term incentive sch&me ' 328 ‘ 347
1466 1473

The aggregate of emolumetits and amounts payable under long term incentive schemas of the highest'paid
director was £491,571 (2008: £482,695).. This includes amounts receivable under kmg term incentive
schemes of £190,179 (2008: £186,553).

The directors’ emoluments and long term incentives disclosed above are in respect of payments-made
by FM Insurance Compary Lxmlted and the Parent, Facmry Mutual Insurance Company, for quahfymg
director’s services. . -

, 2009 2008
Retirernent benefits are aeeriing to the followi ing number of dimctors under. 4 4
daﬁned benefit schemes.

Three directors have outstanding car loans at 31 December 2009 (2008; Three). The car loans are
interest-free; no non payment is antzcxpated and payments are taken at source, The amounts cutstaﬂdmg
are as follows:

s As at: 1 Jtmuary 2009 the brought fbnvard omstaxxdmg amount was £20 962 and as at 31 Dewmber
2009 the carried forward outstanding amount was £13,098.

- Asatl January 2009 the brought-forward outstandmg amournt was £15,866 and as at 31 December
2009 the carried forward outstanding amount was £10,267.

Asat} January 2009 the brought forward outstanditg amount was £14 566 and as at 31 Demmber
2009 the carried forward outstanding amount was £9,’962

9 Stalfl numbers and costs

The average rmmber of employees of the group durmg the year ended 31 Decamher 2009 was l 160
(2908 1,086) and can be catcgm:sed as follows ; _ A

2000 2008

Engmemng S R I O 74 3

Administration md?rofwsmmnl ' L CEAAN -y

Operations. = . L RERE N L B T 41

Underwriting -~ 1 ; . ‘ S LS U6
: ' - i ‘ : l,lm : : ) ;am




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the comalidatedﬁnancial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2009

9 Staff numbers and costs (eonﬁnued)

Staff costs consistof:

Wages and salaries.
-Social security costs
Other-pension costs

10 Tax on profit/(loss) on-ordinary activities

(2} Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary abtivitics

The chirge/(credit) to taxation is made up as follows:

Current tax;

UK ycbmmfaxion tix on profits/losses of the period

Withholdiiig tax relief
Cyversens relief
Foreigntax: .

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total current tax

Deferred tax: »
Décelerated capital dilowances

Losses. - ;

Timing differénce in respect of pension
Adjustinent in respect of prior year
Ohier t:irﬁing différences

Tatél deferved tax L

Taxation on profit(loss) on ordinary activities

2009

2008
£000 £000
66,946 50,947
11,772 10,344
7,329 6,746
86,047 68,037
2008 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000
761 209
@34) -
147y (209)
10,085 7,208
10,365 - 7208
930 1,480 .
1295 8,688
(158) (1ol
12,19 AL618)
4,041 1755
a,37) 123
3619 ~ 103 ,
i 18323 ’ ©.738)
29618 (1,050}
o 5




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009
10 Tax on profit mxbrﬂinary activities (continued)

by Tax included in the statement oftotal recognised gains and losses
The chidrge to taxation is made upias follows:

2009 2008
£000 - E000

Deferved tax: :
Actuarial gain/{loss)y on:pension scheme 370 S 4,971
Total tax charge/(credit) 370 ' {4,977}

(©) Facwrs affecting tax charge forthe perind:

The tax assessed for theperiod 7s lower than the standard rate of ccmmamn tax in the UK. ’I‘he ﬂxtfemnces
are explained below:

2009 2008
£000 . £000
PrafitiTLoss) on ordinary activities before tax C 95,584 - (35.985)
T R e
Effects of ;
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes » 2 607 : 552
Shortterm timing differences’ : E{T,420) {1 ,772)
Tax payable on ovérseas profits S 2,126 6,502
Unrelieved: foreign tax N 1) ] i
Withitiolding tax notrelieved ) ‘ , . 371 5 |
Adjustments in regpect-of prior years - ‘: 930 FI,48‘0
Losses utilised R L gzaeey o Lg2r
S G ME285 o 8688

‘”I’he growp earns incoirie in many different countries: ami on avemg&, pays mxes at rates htgher than the
UK statutory rate. The overall xmpact of these higher taxes is subject to ahangas in‘enacted tax rates and

the country mix of i:he gmup s:income; Hcmver, itis not expmt&d to ¢chirige sxgmfmtly inthe shart o

tcrm

All prioryear losses-have been utilised agam«;t current year pmﬁt The gmup has tio unrehawad U 1{ tax o
lassas avaliable for caﬁ'sat z;gamst future taxable profit ts (m:vte 15). : : '




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

11 Company - Investment in subsidiary nndermkings

sis 5008

£000 £000

Al January ' 813 778

Disposal of subsidiary : (762} , —

Exchange adjustments ‘ i 35

At 31 December - © &Y ‘ g #13
——

Particulars of subsidiary 1mdertakmgs (ordinary shares) mcluded inthese consohdated financial
statements are as follows:

Subsidiary : Country of

Percentage
B Incorporation - ownership. Rapire of busiess
EMI Services Venezugla CA i Venszueld 97% Engineering Services
FN Engineering International Limited ' UK U T00% Enitindering Services

FM Engineering Consulting (Shanghai) Coy;, Limited (wholly

“iowned by FM Engincering Intemaﬁcmal Litnited) China. 100% - Engineering Services

FM do Brasil Servicos de Prevencae de Perdas Limited: was sold at book value dunng the year to FM
Global Services LLC with an effectwe dateof 31 May 2009,

12 Cansohdated - Oﬁwr financial investments

2009 2008
, £000 T £000
Murket value : ” -

Debt securities RTINS #% 104,853
Exquities ~ : 267873 o 165304
Depesits with credit msmmwns . 4496 L
344,326 ; 270157

Debt seeuirities . , . S 49 o 94,010
Equities v . : “ 351,483 o 228,800
Deposits with credit msumﬁms b C 4496 P —

35128 322810




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

12 Other financial investments (continued)
The debt securities and equities are all listed investthénts.

Company ~ Other financial investments

. Market value

Debt securities

BEquities :

Deposits with-credit institutions

Cost

Dbt securities

Bquities

Deposits with cfedit institutions

2009 2008
£000 £000
42257 104,504
267573 165,304
4,496 —
344,326 269,808

m
69,149 93,686
251483 328,800
4,496 e
335,128 322,486

13 Consolidated and Company - Debtorsarising out of direét insurance operations

Amounts owed by paliayhulders :

14 Consolidated - Other debtors

Amoivits fulling due withini one year:
Cefporation tax: » ,
Amotnts.owed by affiliated undertakings
Sundry deblors

Amounts falling due after vie year:
Deferred tax asset-(see pote 15)

2008
£000

94,291

N T

2008
£000

1,480 -
: 1,468

6,440

15,713




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

14 Other debtors (continued)

Company — Other debtors

Amounes folling due within one year,
Corporation tax 5
Amounts owed by aftiliated undertakings
Sundry debtors '

Amounts falling die after one year:
Deferred tax asset {see note 13)

15 Consolidated - Deferred tax asset

Deferred fax asset af the start of thé year
Maovement during the year'. '
Deférred tax asset at the end ‘of the year

Deferred tax:asset st the end.of the year is made up of;

Excess depreciation aver capital allowanges
Deferred tax on pension-deficit

Deferred tax asseton Josses
COthertiming-differénces

Dieferred tax asset at'the énd of thé year

Company - Deferred tax asset

- Deferted tax asset at the start m’j‘vt‘he vear
Mevenent during the year. 00
Defméd*tax asset at the end of the year

Deferred tax asset at the end of the year s viade up of;

Excess depreciation over capital allowances
Defétred tax asseton'logses . -

Other timing differences S
Disferred tax asset at the end of the yoar

6,040
2450

1,212
9,702

1,298

i
£000

15713

(14.289)
1424

S —T

2009

15581

(14283)

1,208

2009

R

767

2008
£000

- 1,351
1,159

2387

5,097

15,581

2008
£000
4,129

11,3584

15713

2008
£000
444

83
15,069
117
B3

2008
£000
4,101 -

111,480

15,881

2008
£000

395
15,069

Y A

15,581




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the cansaluiated financial statements
Jfor the year ended 31 December 2009

15 ])efgrred ax asset (continued)

The ‘group has fully utdtsed tax losses against current year pmﬁt A deferred tax asset is no tonger
recognised in relauoﬁ 1o these losses,

. Deferred tax has been calculated at 28% (2008; 28%).

16 Consolidated — Tangible fixed assets

Equipinent x
furmiture and vef::i?lz: Tatal
computers
£000 L2000 £000

Cost . ’ o
At beginning of year g 21,640 , 658 22,198
Additions : ' . 1,348 — 1,348
Disposals (624) UL (649) 1,273
Exchange adjustmenits : 1,355 72 1,427

Al efid of year ' 3719 o8 23,800

" - Depreciation v ,

At beginning of year ' S 14,574 ST e
Charge for year : T - 2,086 39 : 2,128
Disposals ) ) T (o) (347) (751}
Exchange adjustiments ) S 024 22 LA

Atend of year : e 17280 e 6l 1734

Ney book value

At} December 2009 6,439 : 20 6,459

At 31 December 2008 » 7,066 3 7317




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes ta tite cansolidated f nanciai statements

16 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Company - Tangible fixed assets

Equipment _ : '
furniture and. vx;ﬁ; ' Total
coniputers : :
~ £000 £000 €000
Cost ‘
At beginning-of year 19,940 326 20,266
Additions ’ v 1,281 — S 1,381
Disposals . . “é6) Rl (313)
Exchange: adjuszmems 1223 e 1,223

Atend ofyear 22.398 59 22487

Depreciation.

At beginning of yoar , ' 13,325 248 13,573
Chitge for year 1,923 S 4 1,927
Disposals n (204) {204)
Exchange adiustments ’ _ . 941 e 941

At end of year 16;189 48 16,237

Netbook valne } . i

At 31 December 2009 6,209 11 - 6,220

78

At31 December 2008 , 6,615

| 6,693

17 Collateral deposits

Included in cash aft bank are amnun’t& totalling £2,374 000 (2()08 £1.819 O()ﬂ) relating to the Gmup and
£2,253,000 (2008 £1,666,000) relating to the Company whwh have been depesﬁed ‘with third parties to

secure ceftain Habilities,

18 Consolidated and Company - Share capital

Authorised.
500, 000 000 Ordmmy ah;xres of. £& tach

Altottzd, enllid up: ;mdﬂdéy paid
325 000 000 Otdinary shares uf £l each

2009 2008

£000 £000 -
500,000 . 500,000
325000 325000




FM Insurance Company Limited

Naotes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

19 . Consolidated — Reserves

" Share Profit and Total
Premigm loss
Account account
£000. £000 £000
At beginning of year 918 i(23,684) (22,706)
Profit for the year S £5.966 65,966
Actuarisl gain (FRS17) ; ' o 1,320 1320
Deferred tax on gétuarial gain e (370) 370)
Net currency translation differences in : v
- foreign branches T 10,625 10,625
At endof year: - : SR 98 53,887 .. - S4835
Company ~Reserves
Share Profitand - v’I’ot‘ni
Premivin loss
. Account account
At beginming of yedr 978 @867 " (24,699)
Profitfor'the vear S 65,548 65,548
Aetuarial gain (FRS17) - 1,320 1,320
Deferred tax o actuarial gain , e 3705 G
Net currency-franslation differences in s S 3
foreign-branches ’ oot 10,123 10,123
Atgnd of year ' 978 50544 : 51,922




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

20 Consclidated — Reconeiliation of movements in shareholder’s funds

2009 2008
, , £000 £000
Openiing sharcholder’s funds 302,294 347,047
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year . - 65,966 (34,935)
FRS17 Actiarial gain/(loss) .- . : 1,320 Caram
Deferred tax on actuarial (gain)loss : (37) 4,977
Net currency translatiof differences in foreign branches . 10,625 2,979
Closing sharcholder’s fnds: 379,835 302,294

Company — Reconciliation of movements in shareholder’s funds

2009 2008

; ) CE008 £000

Opening shargholder's funds , - 300,301 345,664
Profit/(Loss) forthe financial year i 65,548 - (35,286)
FRS17 Actuarial gain/Qoss) - : . 1320 a7,714)
Deferred tax on actuarial (gain)/loss : L () 4977
Net curréiicy transtation diff¢fenccs ih:-foreign branches SUNS TN T B 2,720

Closing shareholder’s funds : ' 316912 300,301




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the conséliélated ﬁnakcial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

21 Consolidated and Company — ’Techiiical provisions and deférred m:quisitian costs

Gross amouny!

At beginning pf bycar
Exchange mavemints
Muoveingnt iit the provision

Atend.of year

Retrisurance amount:

At beginning of year
Exchange riovements
Movementin the provision

Atend of year

Net balanee atend of year

At begianing of year

Deferred

Provision Clsim}sk Total Net:
for Qutstanding Equalisation “Technical Acquisition Insurance
Unearned Provision Provigions Costy. Funids
Premiums : ‘
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £009
244,714 391,214 1,549 637477 5,497 631,980
6,990 14,408 - 21,398 119) 21517
(5,114) (65,588) 5475 (65227) 288 (65,515)
246,590 340,034 7024 593,648 see6 . ssTom
188,580 265,055 — 455,635 9,316 444,319
5378 9,053 . 14,431 . T80 . 43,651
(12,208) (48,963) e’ (61,168) 1,847 (63.015)
181,753 228,145 — o 406898 11943 . 394935
64,837 114,889 7,024 186,750 6y 193,027
56,134 126,159 1,549 183,842 187,661

L (3819

Net claims incurred in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account includés £37,732,000 of savings
related to losses that occurred prior 10 the current financial year (2008: £10,695,000 savings).

An equalisation provision has been established as explained in the accounting policies. - This has the
cumulative effect of reducing group and company sharcholder’s funds by £7,024,000 4t the year end
(2008: £1,549,000). ' The change in equahsatmn provision during the year comprised of 4 decrease of
£5.:475,000.(2008: £7,760,000 increase) in the balaiice on the tecl:mtca] ‘aecount general business and
thcreby decredsing the profiton ordmary activities before tax.




FM Insurance Company Lfiniied

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Jfor the year ended 31 December 2009

22 Consolidated — Other ereditors including taxation and social security

Corporation taxatiof payable

Social security

Enginesting fee ingome

Amounts owed fo affiliated lmdf:rtakmgs
Other sundry creditors

Company — Other creditors including taxation and social security

Carporation taxation payable

Social security

Engineering fee incorng

Ambunts owed to afifliated undenskmgs
Other sundry creditors .

23 Congolidated - Accruals and deferred income

Deferred reinsusance wmmlssmns {note 21)
+ Salary and incentive accruals : ‘ TOEL
Other accrualsiand déferredincome

Company wﬁészzuaﬁ and deferred incqmé

Deferred-reinsuranide commissions {note 21)
Salaryand incentive sconials
Other accruals-and:deferred income -

2009

2008
£000 £000
1806 3,352
5787 3816
6.356 5,698
12,063 6,283
7.098 16,138

33,110 38287

mw

2009 2008
£000 £000
1,604 3,142
TG0 3,614
6,356 - 5,698
13,321 7,299
.. 6897 14,898,
"33,548 34651
2009 2008
£000 £000
11,943 9316
9,136 7;49!3
L2690 6,567
S 24369 . 33,376
2009 2008
" 2000 £000
11,943 9,316
9,389 6,654
L3S 5,920
23,657 21890




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the éonsalidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

24 Pensions

Substantially all of the employess are covered through either stm»type schemes (for example in
France), or schemes provided by the group. Most of the employees not included in state-type schemes
are covered through final salary defined benefit schemes-in the UK, Australia and Germany.

For the UK and Australia the pension scheme,aﬁse’ts are held in separate trusﬁgevad:rmmstefad fimds to
meet long-term. pension liabilities to past.and present employees. The defined benefit obligation-arises
wholly from funded plans‘ Germany’s obligations are covered by an insurance contract with a third
party, for which premiums are paid annually. -Accordingly any movement in-the obligations under the
pension scheme willbe fully offset by the expected return on the insurance contract,

Full actuarial "valuatlons were carried out by a quahﬁed dependent acmary for the three major

~ Germany. The disclosares required under FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits’ have been caiculated based on
the miost recent full actuarial valuations updated to 31 December 2009 and are apphcabie to both the
Group and the Company.

Scheme assety
Thefair value of the schenie’s aSsets, which. are not intended 1o be. recagmsed in tha short term and may be wbpm to,

flow pm}mnom over fong pemxis and thus mheremly uncertain, were:

2008 UK Australia Gzrmany Total. -
' £000 £000 £000 L 4000
Equities ' 50,019 - 1,598 ' R STELT
Buonds : : 25,604 3,070 i 28,674
Properly: D e " 833 0 iy 533
Other ~ Insurande Contracts ' G i 15931 15931
Othier — Cash .~ . L L SR 1,484 5 1907
Fair valoe of scheme assets : 76,046 12,685 15931 ©T 104,662
Present value of scheme liabilities 71,445 : 11,329 - 15,931 5 9BS0S
Surplus in the scheme o 4,601 1556 . — ‘ 6,157
Related deferred tax liability - (1,288) (436) e (1,724)
Net pension dsset . T Ciier LI i 4433
2008 1614 . Australla Gepmany.. i Tetal
' s L E000 L E000 £000. . £000
Equitics. : : ST 32,092 G 3T LT R 35,806
Bonds - L 17848 o BEs T i - 19,660
Property ' o R o WL 231
Other ~ Insurance Contracts. : e N TR 14,259
Other~Cash 190 CooL48 w1438
Fair value of schiome assets 5 36,127 008 ' 14350 71,354
Preseiit value of scherne liabilities 55,734 i 9,641 S 142890 19,654
Deficit in the scheme . T (5.82D) LT 2,659 . 18.260)
' Related deferred rax asset S 1,876 man = RN ]

Net-pension liability - : ‘.J@,OSI} T RORY G - (5 947) -




FM Insurance Company Limited |

Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009 '

24 Pensions (cenﬁnued}

Analysis of ather pension costs chaged in artiving at the balante on the technical account —general business for 2009;

2009
UK . Austealia: Germany . Total
Expected retirn on instrange contracts pons ‘ i (1,029) 1,029}
Clurrent service cost ' » 2,957 926 1,029 4912
2951 936 - ; e 3,883
Analysis of sinounts included in other finance income for 2009; -
‘ ; 2009 ,
UK § Australia Germany Total =
, o £000 ' £000 g0 - - 2060
Expegied refurn on pension schiemie . i
assels /ihsurance contiagts - - 398 532 5o 534
Intetest on-pension scheme Habilities . @3aY (659) _ (891) {5,047
421 ~ e e 294

Analysis of other pension cosis chiarged in arviving st the baiiﬁke ais the teckinical account ~ general business for 2008:

2008 -

UK Australia - Germany Total

, £000- £000 £000 £000
Expected retiin bn insurimgee contracts . : P (1,004). {1,004)
Current service cost ‘ . 2,446 411 1,004 3,861
3,445 : 4Tl o 2857

Analysis of amountsincluded in other finirce income for 2008; :
: , : ' 2008 : _
UK Australia Germany Total
: ol £000 . £000 £000 £000
‘Expested:returii on pensionschére - B : L

assets insurance contracts ; 4,036 | 593 | 719 5408
Interest on pension scheme ibilities ’ {3.082) i (460) , {779) . #.321)

954 133 e 1,087

The ‘amounts ‘dbove in_respect of ‘the German pension scheme have been fully offset by expected
recoveries under an insurance contract on a line by line basis. Al items in the profit and loss account-
and statement of total recognised gains and losses are shown net of the expected return on the insurance
eontract, L L » ‘ R S




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

24 Pensions (canﬁulied} ‘

Analysis of amount recognised in statemeit of tofa) recognised gains and losses 2009;

. 2009 ;
UK ‘ Augtralia Germany Total
£000 £600 £000 £000
“Actual return on pénsion scheme assets 11,116 y 1,892 — i 13,008
Less; Expected returnon pensmn schetng 3918 532 . 4450
assets ; .

, S 7,198 1,360 - ' 8.558
;’;‘;ﬁnﬂ: mﬁﬁg #d {pssee-arising 4 : 134 o (588) @ . (926)
Chariges in assumptions underlying the : _ : '
present value of scheme assets / lisbifities (10.275) Sl hat R ’(§,271)
ﬁmﬁﬁfﬁ pension scheme assets / T | B oy 0
Astuarial gain/(loss) recognised-in statemient @943 4263 o 1,320

of total recopnised gains and fosses

e T

Analysiz.of ameunt recognised in statement of ttal recognised gains and losses 2008:

2008

UK - Australia o Gerimany Total

£000 L £000 £000- . £000
Actual return on pensiort scheme assets - (9.307) (1,337 iy ©4(10,644)
Less; Expected return on pension scheme ' :
assets 4,036 593 — ; 4,629

(13,343) (1,930) L e (15,273)

i};pfggr;fn% 5?:122 and losses ansmg on (569) | 12 » 101 , @52
Changes in assumptions umieﬂying the ’ : ‘ : L e
pm! valie of xchame assels 7 linbilities ;73 - @nyso 1,398‘ i (330)
Expwwd return: off pension whexm: 285818 f S UL L F
insurange contracts. ‘ i T {1699 , (1,699)
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in statement S o e
o total retgnised gaino ol losscs 3, 735} o 039} — B ¢ )
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2099

24 ‘ Pensions (continued)

Cumulative aifiount recogiised since 1 January 2002 in statement of total recaguised gains and losses:

UK Australia Germany Total
£000 £000 £000 5000
At end of year ' (15,441) (038 L (17,376)

: ' B 2009 , :
Changes in the present value of the defined UK . o Ausfralia - Germany: Total
benefit-obligition during 2009 : ' »

; £600 Can s £000 . £000 £000
At beginnintg, of yeur . L 55,784 - T 9,681 T D 14,288 794654
Exchange adjustments L e : 3096 1104 4,200
Ctirrent service gost L 2,987 926 1,029 4,912
Triterest cost : : 3497 659 891 ' 5,047
- Benefits paid - ooey 669 @iy (1,844)
Contribytions from plan participaiits;© - - 379 it 379
Actuatial Toss/(gain) . 10,141 (2,903) (1;041) 6,197 -
At end of yedr 1445 5120 0 18931 98,505
Changeé’ inithe present vidue of thedefined UK Augiralia Germany ol
benefit obligation during 2008 : ; ‘ ' :
‘ ‘ £000 £000 ; EOO0 5 £000
At beginning of year 50,652 6921 12,090 69,663
Exchanpe adjvstmients : e {68) 2.319 2,251
. Cutrent service cost 2,446 411 1,004 73,861
Interest cost E v e 3,082 460 779 4321
Benefits paid T N &8y @98y 234) (1.550)
Contributions from plan pammptmts ' , e 306, e 306
Actuarial loss/(gain) e i 393 M09 et (,699) 802

CAtend of year G TTUTTTSsTsA T o 9BAL . 14289 719,654
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

24 Pensions (continued)

: 2009
Changes in the fair valug of plan assets UK Australis Germany Total
durmg 2009 ; g
: £000 £006 i £000 £600
At begsmmg of year 50,127 7008 14,259 71,394
Exchange adjustments : —_— 2,250 : 1,164 33584
Expected retur oft plan assers = 3,918 R %)) - 4,450
Contributions paid : 15767 1,825 ; . 17,532
Actuarial gain/(loss) 7,198 1,360 : S 8,538
Benefits paid : (964) o {669) (311 - (1,884)
Contribiutions from plan: participants - 379 - 379
Expected returti o msurance contracls s L 879 I v
Atend of year 76,046 12,685 15,931 . 104,662
Trm el pumesosshommeern  sweseldoesenes oroismossm
2008
Changes in the fair value of plan assels : UK Australin Germany Total
during 2008 '
£000 £000 £000 £000
At beginnini of year ' 52,753 1,767 ‘ 12090 72,610
Exchange adjustietits , g {16 2,319 2,243
Expected refurn on plin assets 4,036 593 - 4,629
Contributions paid ’ 7,499 846 - mvn 8,345
Actuarial gain/floss) : {13,343 - 1,930) i (15,273)
Benefits paid | (818) (498) e e 1,316}
Contributions from plan participants T 306 i © 306
Bxpected return oft insurance-contracts e T TP (130) (150)
At end of year ' 50127 7,008 44y m 71,394

The total contrsbutmns to th& defined benefit schemes in 201 6 are expectzd to be £3,923,000.
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24 Pensions {continued)

The major assumptions used fu these valuations were:

2008

UK Aystralia

o Yo
?st;lgg inerease m 525 S0
Rate of increasé in
pensions in payment and . - 3,55 - 30
deferced pensions
Discount sate applied 1o
scheme liabilities 54 18
Inflation assumption 378 2.75
Lihg term rate of Refura:™ :
Equities 8.45 79
Bonds 565 L¥]
Indexslinked gilts ~ 4,45 NI
Cash 05 5.4
Fmpcﬂy N?A : 1.5

Germiany
%

3.2
2.0
5 téz
NIA

NIA
NA
N/A-
N/A
NIA

UK

8%

4.5
2.9

6.0

3.0

7.7
6.7

37
20

N/A

2008

Australia Germany

%
50

- 30

5.2
235

6.3
44

NIA
38
59

%%

3h

228

385
NiA

WA

N/A
N/A
N/A
NIA

The assum;vtmns used by the actuary aré the-best estimates choset from a range of po&sxb!e actuarial
assumptions which, due to the timescale covered, may hot necessarily be borne out il practice:

History of experience gains and losses 2000

Fair value of scheme usseéts
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Surplus/(Peficit)-in the scheme

Expericace gain/loss) arising on plan
linbilities

- Experience gain/(loss) arising on plan agsets

Histéry of experiente gains angd MSmszﬁé :

_"Fairvalue of scheme asxeis :
" Present value of defined benefit ubiigaziun
$m-piusfgr}eﬁmt) in the se!wme

Experience gam/(mss) msmg on plan
liabilities. :
Lx;mmm gain/(loss) arising on p!an amts :

v 2009
UK. - Australia Germany ~ Total
£000 £000° £080 £000
76,046 12,685 15,931 104,662
(71,445) (11,129) (15.931) (98,505)
4,601 1,556 — 6157
i34 (588 (472) {926)
7,198 1,360 472 9,030
S 2008
LUK Australia Germany Total .
£000 £000 000 0 £000.
80,127 008 14259 : 71,394
(55,758 (9,641) (14259) (79654
(5.627) © (2,633) - - (8,260)
(565) 12 301 @)
(13343) 490 gy (3374

e




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Jor the year ended 31 December 2009

24 Pgnsians (conﬁnueﬂ)

History of experience gains and losses 2007

Fair value of schemi assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Surplu$/(Deficit) in the scheme

Experience gain/(logs) atisipg on plan
Liabitities
Experierice gain/(Joss) arising on plan assets

History of experience gains aiid lpsses 2006

Fair value of scheme assets -
Pregent value of defined benefit obligation
Surplus/(Defick) in the scheme

Expetience gaibfilass) arising on plan.
liabilities v
Experience gain/(loss) arising on plan-assefs

“Histery of experience gaiis and losses 2005

Fair valye of scheme assets. -
Present valite of defined beneflt obligation
Surplus/(Deficit) in the scheéme;

Expérience gain/(loss) arisingon plan
Habilities o ~

Experience gain/loss) ariging on plan assets

2007

L 3,765

61

UK Australia: ° Germany Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
52,753 71,767 12,090 - 12610
{50,652) _(6,921) €12,090) (69,663)
B i 846 o 2,947
(351 {119 (162) (633)
(61) 131 162 232

2006

UK Australia Geérmary Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
41,78 6739 11,594 66,108
(58,305) (6,092) {11,594) {(72,991)
(7.530) 647 . (6:883)
1,942 292 810 3048
218 ATy (810) (1,008)

C 2005 :

1914 < Austratia Germany Totl

£000 £000 £000 7 £000
43,795 5,744 o 10216 59,755
(51;308) L (8.918) (10,216) - (67.440)
(7,513) €172 — (7,685)
4.591) 591 611 S (3,389)
196 3,350
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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25 Capital Commitments
The company has the following annual commitrents under non-cancellable operating leases:

2009 v ‘ 2008

Buitdings - Other Buildings o COther
£000 . £000 T E000 £000

Operating teases which expire: ) ’
Within 1 year ' 683 345 435 239
Within2to Syears 3,915 2,003 4,702 1,507
More than' § years 2,837, —_— ' 2,040+ i
7,135 2,348 ' 7177 1,746

26 Pm’ent Campany & Ultimate coutrollmg party

The company is a wholiy owned- subsidiary .of Factory Mumal Insurance: Company (FMIC), the
regxstered office of which is 270 Central Avenue, Johnston, RI 02919-4949; USA. EMIC is the largest
group in.which the financial results of FM{ are mcluded Copies of the group accounts are available to
the public at the above address;

27 Reconciliauou to US GAAP

fhe financial statements have been -prepared in accordance with United Iﬁmgdom Generally Accepted
Accounting - Practice (UK GAAP), which differs in certain respects from -adcounting  ptinciples
generally accepted in the United States (US GAAP). Whilst there are numerous differences between
the two bases of accounting, there are only a limited number that are: applicable to the Group, The
following is a reconciliation of UK GAAP shareholders funds attributable to equity interests and UK
GAAP loss for the year to the equivalent measures under US GAAP. A description of the relevant
differences follows the recongiliation. ‘

: Shnrzhnldef”s Equify Reconciliation; et
: 2009 2008

£000 £000

UK GAAP sharcholder's funds attributable o equity interests S yrems 0 300,204
o Equahsaum provision .l : . : S o 24 1,549
Provisioh for.bad debts Pe R ; e e e 4276
‘Defin‘ed benefit pension assst - i : i s LT 288 ¢ S 21

us Gwmmhnldbr‘sequitj” ; : ' ‘ i ; o asesT ~'3§{§??;842




FM Insurance Company Limited
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27 Reconciliation to US GAAP (continug'd;

Profit and ‘Loss Reconciliation; :
2009 - 2008

£000 £000
UK GAAP profit/(loss) for the vear : 65966 . (3493%)
Fqualisatioir provision , : ‘ 5475 (1.760)
Provision for bad debts : (5:062) 1,411
Défined benefit pension asset : . @1 (165)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on investments : ’ (93.612) 19.831
Foreign exchinge revaluations of investinents 5877 {13,535)

US. GAAP loss for the year ‘ j (21,739) (35,153)

Equalisation Provision

Under UK GAAP, an equalisation provision is n‘:quired to be included ‘within technical provisions
based on a specified caleulation. The mquwement is in place to help smooth fluctuations in loss ratios
in futare years for business where claims in any future year may be subject to significant deviations
fromi recent or average claims eﬁperlenﬁe, or where trends in experzenea may be subject to change. Such
volatile claims experience may arise in the case, for example, of i insurance against losses caused by
major catastrophes such as hurricanes or earthquakes. Under US GAAP, loss reserves are required to
be recorded at- management’s best estimate of the ultimate amount required to settle the claims.
Smoothing mechanisms such as the equalisation provwmn, and” Latasiropha Teserves spm:ﬁca‘lly are
prohibited under US GAAP. '

‘ Provisitm Jor Bad Debts
Under UK and US GAAP, the Company applies the accounting policy of its parent company which is -
to provide for a bad debt provision when there is evidence that an asset is impaired. Previously under-
UK GAAP the Company made an additional provision for debtors greater than 90 days past due,
However . this “additional provision -was cans;dered unnemssary hased upon historwa] debtor
recovetability trends. : :

Deﬁued Benefit Pension Asset

Undsr UK GAAP, retirement benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 “Reumneat Benefits” (ERS 17).

For US GAAP, the Company follows the accounting policy of its parent company, the Statement of = =

Financial Accounting Standard No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans” (SFAS. 158). Under both FRS 17 and SFAS 158, the funded status of
defined benefit plans are recorded on balance sheet, The basic principles of the two standards are
snmlar, however thcre arg diffemnces in the underlymg ca}miatmﬁs of the funded siatus

Hureafised {'gﬁias)ﬂasses on ;ﬂmmts

account, Fm- US GAAP purposea, unreahsad gams and wsses on mw&tm@nts are racagmsed watimx s

Slm:mhoider 8 Eqmty w the ext@nt that any uureahsed losses are not pennmlwt 1mpamnems




FM Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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27 Reconciliation to US GAAP (continued)

Foreign exchange revaluations efinvestments ol Do L
Under UK GAAP foreign exchange revalvations on mveénnents, are recogniaed in:the profit.and loss
account. For US GAAP purposes, foreign exchange revaluations on investments are recognised directly

in Shareholder’s Equity; to the éxteént that the related investments are still held by the group at the end
of the year. ; ' , =




